
 
 

 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE, SAFETY AND GROWTH 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
 
24 September 2024 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 
A Meeting of the Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee will be held in 
Town Hall, Market Street, Tamworth on Wednesday, 2nd October, 2024 at 6.00 pm. 
Members of the Committee are requested to attend. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
Chief Executive 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

NON CONFIDENTIAL 
 
  
1 Apologies for Absence  
 
2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 14) 
 
3 Declarations of Interest  

NON-CONFIDENTIAL



 
To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (personal and/or 
personal and prejudicial) in any matters which are to be considered at this 
meeting. 

  

When Members are declaring a personal interest or personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of which they have dispensation, they should 
specify the nature of such interest.  Members should leave the room if they 
have a personal and prejudicial interest in respect of which they do not 
have a dispensation.   
  

  
 

 
4 Update from the Chair  

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 
5 Responses to Reports of the Infrastructure Safety & Growth Committee  

 Update on responses received to Reports of the Infrastructure Safety & Growth 
Committee. 
 

 
6 Consideration of Matters referred to the Infrastructure Safety & Growth 

Committee from Cabinet or Council  

 (Discussion item) 
 

 
7 Heritage Engagement Co-ordinator review (To Follow) 

 (Report of the Portfolio Holder for People Services. Engagement and 
Leisure/Assistant Director, Growth and Regeneration) 
 
 

 
8 FHSF Update September 2024 (To Follow) 

 (Report of the Leader of the Council) 
 

 
9 Maintenance of Estates and Open Spaces (Pages 15 - 26) 

 (Presentation from the Operations Manager) 
 

 
10 Working Group Updates  

 To receive updates from any Working Groups 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



11 Forward Plan  

 (Discussion item – link to Forward Plan is attached) 
 
Browse plans - Cabinet, 2024 :: Tamworth Borough Council 
 

 
12 Infrastructure Safety & Growth Scrutiny Committee Work Plan (Pages 27 - 

30) 

 (Discussion item – to review the Infrastructure Safety & Growth Scrutiny Work 
Plan) 
 

   _________________________________________ 
 
Access arrangements 

If you have any particular access requirements when attending the meeting, please contact 
Democratic Services on 01827 709267 or e-mail democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk. We can 
then endeavour to ensure that any particular requirements you may have are catered for. 
 
Filming of Meetings 

The public part of this meeting may be filmed and broadcast.  Please refer to the Council’s 
Protocol on Filming, Videoing, Photography and Audio Recording at Council meetings which can 
be found here for further information. 

If a member of the public is particularly concerned about accidental filming, please contact a 
member of Democratic Services before selecting a seat 

FAQs 

For further information about the Council’s Committee arrangements please see the FAQ page 
here 

 
 
 
To Councillors: M Couchman, L Wood, C Adams, M Bailey, L Clarke, M Clarke, J Oates, 
B Price and N Statham 

https://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=120&RD=0bcr=1
mailto:democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/councillors_docs/TBC-Filming-Protocol.docx
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/council-meetings-faqs


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1  

 

 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 
INFRASTRUCTURE, SAFETY AND 
GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

HELD ON 22nd AUGUST 2024 
 
 
 
PRESENT: Councillor M Couchman (Chair), Councillors L Wood, C Adams, 

M Bailey, M Clarke, J Oates, B Price and N Statham 
CABINET: Councillor Carol Dean 
 
The following officers were present: Anica Goodwin (Executive Director 
Organisation), Anna Miller (Assistant Director – Growth & Regeneration), Niki 
Stokes (Planning Assistant (Policy)), Leanne Costello (Senior Scrutiny and 
Democratic Services Officer) and Laura Sandland (Democratic and Executive 
Support Officer) 

30 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor L Clarke. 
 
Apologies were received from Councillor D Foster as Portfolio Holder for 
Sustainability, Waste and Recycling. 
 

31 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the previous meetings held on 1tth July 2024  and the 7th of 
August 2024 were approved as a correct record. 
 
(Moved by Councillor L Wood and seconded by Councillor M Clarke) 
 

32 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were none. 
 

33 UPDATE FROM THE CHAIR  
 
The Chair advised the Committee that the items for open spaces due to be on the 
agenda this evening had been moved as it was important that there was enough 
time to look at every item thoroughly and that this would be added to the agenda 
on the 2nd October. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

22 August 2024 

 

 
2 

 

34 RESPONSES TO REPORTS OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE SAFETY & 
GROWTH COMMITTEE  
 
The Chair updated the Committee that Further to the meeting on the 7th August 
you attended Cabinet to present the two recommendations which were agreed, 
the Annual Garden Waste Subscription item decision was deferred as requested 
to allow the item to return to the Committee today and then a report would be 
presented to Cabinet on the 29th August following Scrutiny. 
 

35 CONSIDERATION OF MATTERS REFERRED TO THE INFRASTRUCTURE 
SAFETY & GROWTH COMMITTEE FROM CABINET OR COUNCIL  
 
There were none. 
 

36 ANNUAL GARDEN WASTE SUBSCRIPTION CHARGE  
 
The Chair introduced the report of the Portfolio Holder for Environmental Sustainability, 
Recycling and Waste to provide IS&G Scrutiny with the updated information regarding 
the rationale to substantiate the increase in garden waste subscription. The original 
report presented to Scrutiny on the 7th August had been updated and is contained 
herewith. This report would be subject to IS&G scrutiny approval be presented to Cabinet 
on the 29th August.  
 
The Chair welcomed Councillor C Dean in the absence of the Portfolio Holder and the 
Executive Director Organisation who introduced the report, highlighting the following 
figures that had been requested by the Committee –  
 
➢ For a 30% drop in overall subscriptions an expected figure of £20,000 has been 

provided, however it should be noted that Lichfield saw a downturn in 
approximately £100.00. Even if Tamworth saw a downturn of 10% this would not 
have a significant budgetary impact. 

➢ Figures around CPI included, which showed that, had this been applied each year 
then the cost for the green waste collection would now already be £45.52. 

➢ A breakdown of related costs was included in the appendices (Pg 86). It was 
confirmed that the exact breakdown between Lichfield and Tamworth is 
Tamworth (32%) and Lichfield (68%). 

➢ If the annual green waste charge does not increase, then the cost to the budget 
would be £68,000. 

➢ Overall summary budgets have been included as requested. 
 
The Committee made the following comments/observations and asked the following 
questions: 
 

1. On appendix 5 (Pg 85) were the figures for 2018/19 actual or budget, and 
why were there only figures for this period and 24/25? 
It was confirmed that these were budget, and that Officers had been asked 
to show the variance between when the service started and now. 

2. Does the £20,000 figure for a 30% downturn consider reduction in costs 
such as transport or is this just the subscriptions? 
Officers confirmed that if the Council lost £20,000 due to a reduction in 
subscriptions, whilst the cost depletion would go down it would not go 
down by £20,000. 

Page 6



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

22 August 2024 

 

 
3 

 

The Operations Manager (Joint Waste Service) added that from 
experience, they have never known a loss of 30% from introducing a 
chargeable service and gave the example of when Lichfield put the price 
up by £4.00 in one year they only lost a minute amount of subscribers.  

3. Clarification around why there are no bank charges showing for 18/19 and 
this increased to £10,000 for 24/25? 
Tamworth’s accountant has confirmed that these figures have been 
submitted by the Lichfield accountant and they were reported at 0, they are 
unsure if at these times the fees were directly attributed to the service, but 
the figures are correct now. 
 

 
RESOLVED: that the Committee supported the following recommendations 

for Cabinet to agree: 
  

1. Approve the increase of the annual subscription fee to £41 
effective 1st January 2025, with the sign up window open in 
October. 

  
 (moved by Councillor M Couchman and seconded by Councillor 

N Statham) 
  
In Favour – 5 
Against – 1 
Abstentions - 2 
 
 
 

37 JOINT WASTE SERVICE - OPERATIONS PERFORMANCE UPDATE AND 
DATA  
 
The Chair welcomed Steve Gee and Victoria Woodhouse from the Joint Waste 
Service to introduce the report of the Operations Manager of the Joint Waste 
Service to provide the Committee a quarterly update of the Joint Waste Service. 
This is a shared service that Lichfield District Council (LDC) deliver on behalf of 
both authorities. 
 
The Operations Manager introduced the report and explained for any new 
Members that this is a legacy report from the Dual Stream Recycling Service. The 
service was described as a good service that works and key information within 
the report was highlighted to the Committee as well as the launch of the new 
recycling campaign.  
 
The Committee made the following comments/observations and asked the 
following questions: 
 

1. Clarification around the £154,000 overspend. 
It was confirmed that the costing model is based around the number of 
properties and currently sits at a 38%/62% split between Tamworth and 
Lichfield, therefore £64,000 is Tamworth’s proportion of the overspend. 

Page 7



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

22 August 2024 

 

 
4 

 

2. Whilst the overspend is described as in proportion for the budget, what 
measures are in place to try to bring that down? 
Officers confirmed that this is an ongoing process. The recycling campaign 
could help reduce costs by reducing the residual waste; rounds can be 
changed over time, making these as efficient as possible; looking at use of 
labour; looking at driving styles to increase fuel efficiency as well as 
looking at contracts and the quality of the product. Some factors cannot be 
controlled such as global process in places like China and Taiwan which 
can have an impact on commodity prices. 
It was highlighted that it would be helpful to have a plan each year for how 
this service were looking to keep costs down within the updates. 

3. Are the crew employed by the service? 
It was confirmed that it is an in-house operation; Lichfield are the employing 
agent. There are 88 frontline staffs plus the back-office support. Agencies are 
used due to fluctuation volumes. Whilst agency volumes are currently higher than 
they would want they work based on 85% staff and 15% agency. 

4. How much is spent on agency staffs and how the costs compare to an 
employee, whether it is worth employing more permanent staffs rather than 
relying on agency staff and whether the quality if affected by agency staff? 

5. This year potential agency costs could be around £500,000. Costs of agency staff 
against employed staffs is quite equal. The problem with employing more staff is 
ensuring that in quiet periods there is enough work so there is a balancing act. 
Whilst employed staffs should be better trained/more reliable etc, many of the 
agency staff used are long term and it would be difficult to pick out agency from 
employed staff.  A hidden cost of agency worked can be time for training.  
The Committee requested a comparison of the costs for agency against 
employed staff. 

6. Whether staff could be cross trained to work in other areas such as street 
scene when the service is quieter? 
Whilst multi-skilling makes sense, this would be difficult as the Joint Waste 
Service is Lichfield and Tamworth whereas Lichfield and Tamworth have 
their own street scene departments. 

7. Are there any proposals to put in multi-use bins in public spaces such as 
the castle grounds? 
It was confirmed that this sits outside of the Joint Waste Service but that 
Lichfield have a similar problem, they are trialling recycling at an upcoming 
event and the data could be shared with Tamworth. It was confirmed that a 
study was being undertaken around bins in the borough. 

8. Are there any proposals to look at if Tamworth could have it’s own 
recycling centre? 
Household recycling sites come under Staffordshire County Council. 

 
RESOLVED: that the committee 
  

1. Endorsed the progress and updates provided. 
  
 (Moved by Councillor L Wood and seconded by Councillor M 

Clarke) 
  
 

38 REVIEW OF THE BULKY WASTE SERVICE  

Page 8



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

22 August 2024 

 

 
5 

 

 
The Chair handed over to the Operations Manager for the Joint Watse Service to 
introduce the report to provide the Committee with an understanding of the Joint 
Waste Service’s bulky waste services, as requested highlighting that the report 
explained the service that is currently provided. And that if Tamworth had ideas 
about the service these would need to be put to the Joint Waste Board. 
 
The following information was highlighted –  
 
➢ Last year there were 4831 requests made (2471 from Tamworth). 
➢ Two services – furniture and scrap metal and can be booked up to a month 

in advance. 
➢ Brings in an income, last year around £90,000. 
➢ Costs £18 per collection and £7.50 per additional item, up to 4 items for 

furniture, 2 for scrap metal. 
➢ There is a maximum size for manual handling reasons. 
➢ Items must be left outside the property and are collected kerbside. 
➢ Scrap metal is collected in a small van with a tail lift and items are taken to 

a household waste site or depot and are passed to Staffs County Council 
to reuse, recycle or dispose of. 

➢ Furniture is collected via the bin lorry and is then taken for incineration 
along with the residual waste. 

➢ Customer service staff are trained around what we can/cannot collected. 
➢ No data to confirm if the services contributes to fly tipping if unable to get a 

collection. 
➢ It is a low-cost service as items collected by bin lorries are tied in with 

collections and van collections are scheduled when they are delivering 
new bins or bags to properties. 

 
The Committee made the following comments/observations and asked the 
following questions: 
 

1. Areas where there is a higher proportion of disadvantage tend to have 
more fly-tipping which could be because of the cost. 
Officers agreed that this appeared to be the case and that these areas also 
seem to have ‘white van men’ operating in these areas. The Officers 
highlighted the importance of getting the message out to residents to use 
reputable services 

2. How have the levels been decided, i.e. carpet, rolled up one room, when 
this size can differ significantly, limits on the number of collections, how 
can we better utilise the service? 
It was confirmed that the levels were set at the beginning of the Joint 
Waste Service in 2010 and is worth reviewing. 

3. With regards to the scrap metal collections, is there any opportunity for this 
to be disposed of for an income? 
The service receives recycling credit for items taken for recycling. 

4. The amount of ‘fly-tipping’ within properties suggest that residents either 
can’t afford, be bothered, or are not aware of the service. 

Page 9



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

22 August 2024 

 

 
6 

 

Could we look at creating links with local community groups who could 
help with the removal of goods which could help people with the burden of 
cost as well as the burden on the service? 
The Officer confirmed that this an area that could be explored.  
It was noted the service has no jurisdiction over residents leaving furniture 
in their garden and that this would need to be a multi-service approach 
between waste, enforcement and environmental teams. 

5. Would it prudent to look at repair shops, which again could link with local 
groups? 
The Officers confirmed that we need to get better as a society at re-using 
and repairing items, giving examples of this in Burntwood and at Lower 
Farm recycling centre.  

6. Is there any surplus in the £90k made from the service? 
The income from the service contributes towards the costs of running the 
service. 

7. Clarification around the list of items that can be collected, an example 
given of being unable to take a suitcase. 
The Officer confirmed that some items can’t be taken due to manual 
handling rules, i.e. American style fridge freezers as the scrap metal 
vehicle is a one-man crew, however acknowledged that the service did 
require a review. 

8. Could we look at service where periodically in different areas people could 
take their bulky items for disposal? This could help in problem areas and 
where there are properties storing residual waste that is not discovered 
until a property becomes void. 
It was confirmed that Officers had seen this done with skips/bin lorries in 
different places and this can work with community engagement. There is a 
cost and does need to involve the County Council around the disposal, it 
was confirmed that this has been done in Lichfield where community teams 
have paid a charge for the service, and they have provided a van and staff 
on a Saturday. 

9. Whether some bulky waste is collected by street scene and therefore is not 
recognised in any data. It was confirmed that street scene now has a three 
man team that collect fly-tipped rubbish. 

 
The Committee confirmed that they wished to set up a working group to 
look further at the issue of bulky waste within the Borough. 

 
 
RESOLVED: that the Committee 
  

1. Endorsed the progress and updates provided. 
2. To set up a working group to consider the matter further of 

bulky waste within the community  
 

 (Moved by Councillor L Wood and seconded by Councillor N 
Statham,) 

 
No further recommendations were made at this stage. 
 

Page 10



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

22 August 2024 

 

 
7 

 

Councillor Bailey left the meeting at 19:20. 
 

39 NATURE RECOVERY DECLARATION UPDATE BRIEFING PAPER  
 
The Chair welcome the Assistant Director, Growth and Regeneration and the 
Planning Officer to introduce the report of the Leader of the Council and Portfolio 
Holder for Environmental Sustainability, Recycling and Waste to update the 
Committee on the authority’s work around the Nature Recovery Declaration that 
was made in November 2023 
 
The Officer summarised the report advising that a draft bio-diversity consideration 
is attached as an appendix to be considered alongside the report. 
 
The Committee made the following comments/observations and asked the 
following questions: 
 

1. How will the policy ensure that the ‘right tree, right place’ strategy won’t 
contribute to the current problem with trees in the borough. Will there be a 
variety of trees, and will we be taking responsibility for the trees that we 
plant? 
The Officer confirmed that the nature recovery declaration stated that work 
needed to be done to conserve nature as well as enhancing it and that 
more thought needed to go in to tree planting, taking in to account climate 
change to ensure the right approach. The Government are also consulting 
on a new national planning framework which states that as well as building 
new houses, that the streets should be tree lined as part of climate 
adaptation, Consideration would need to be given to trees that don’t cause 
problems with light and roots etc. 
The Officer confirmed that they would take away the Members points 
around the variety and maintenance of trees to be considered when writing 
the policy. 

2. With regards to road verges, what is the current policy as there are areas 
within the borough that it looks unkempt and could pose a safety issue. 
The Chair confirmed that one area of concern was due to be addressed. 
The Officer confirmed that they were not responsible for the cutting of road 
verges however the wider strategic question was important. The 
declaration says that once you have satisfied road safety and visibility 
priorities you can then look at how road verges can be positively managed 
or bio-diversity and studies have highlighted that road verges can be 
incredibly bio-diverse. 

3. The report states that the Council should seek to manage at least 30% of 
their greenspace and wildlife – clarification around how big an area this 
was? 
The Officer provided a response at the meeting however later confirmed 
that this was incorrect. 

4. The Committee highlighted that this would be a good opportunity to 
address safety measures by looking at brambles on footpaths and 
cycleways and that we need to ensure that open spaces were managed 
correctly so that areas don’t become litter traps. 
. 

Page 11



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

22 August 2024 

 

 
8 

 

 
RESOLVED that: 
  

1. Members approved the Biodiversity Consideration. As set out in 
Appendix 1 

2. Endorsed the progress and updates provided. 
  
 (Moved by Councillor L Wood and seconded by Councillor M 

Clarke) 
  
  
 

40 WORKING GROUP UPDATES  
 
Cllr Price provide the Committee with an update highlighted the following items 
that had been discussed –  
 
➢ The group met and Cllrs Wood and Statham, and County Cllr Oates were 

present. 
➢ They aim of the group was established to look at if there were sufficient 

HGV facilities within Tamworth and to address the issue of HGV drivers 
parking residential areas. 

➢ Cllr Oates gave on parking update around Ventura Park. 
➢ An application had been made by Brakes for the change of use of their 

carpark which and been a delegated decision. 
➢ Parking on other industrial estates – not aware of any direct resident 

complaints received from residents but to be investigated. 
➢ Some HGV facilities at Tamworth Service Station and what facilities are 

outside of the boundaries. 
➢ Still work to do and requested Committees permission to continue working 

on this matter. 
It was also highlighted that the MP had completed a residents survey and had 
contacted the Borough and the County around littering, speeding and parking on 
Ventura.  
 

41 FORWARD PLAN  
 
There were no items identified from the Forward Plan. 
 

42 INFRASTRUCTURE SAFETY & GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK 
PLAN  
 
The Committee reviewed the workplan and it was noted that the following items 
were due at the next meeting –  
 

➢ Review of the Heritage Engagement Officer Post  
➢ Future High Street Fund 
➢ Maintenance of Estates and Open Spaces 

 
 

Page 12



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

22 August 2024 

 

 
9 

 

  
  
 Chair  
 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Maintenance of estates and 
open spacesP

age 15

A
genda Item

 9



Overview

To provide members with an understanding of the role of Street Scene, what maintenance takes 

place and to provide an understanding that the impact current service standards and resources 
have on the appearance of the estates. 

The Street Scene Operational Services for the authority oversee a wide range of services 

provided for the borough namely: Parks, Open Spaces and Cemeteries; Land Drainage, Trees, 

Street Scene and Maintenance of Community Amenities. They also support the authorities work 

on biodiversity / nature declaration in conjunction with colleagues within the Regeneration and 

Growth Team. The team also support various council functions including the running of the 

elections process, through to supporting the  authority large-scale events and external hires that 

are supported by the council.

P
age 16



Mark Greaves

Operations Manager (I)

Deputy Operations 
Manager- MT

(G)

Chargehand HMO

( E)

HMO x  7

(D)

Tree Officer-

(F)

ARB Environment 
Maintenance Operative x 2

Arb Temp x 1

Team Leader Clean and 
Green-

(F) 

Chargehand Clean and 
Cemeteries 

(E) 

Clean EMO’s 

x 15 (D)

Green Apprentice 

X 2

Team Leader Clean and 
Green

(F)

Chargehand Green and 
Cemeteries

(E )

Green EMO’s

X 14 (D)

Green Environmental 
Maintenance Assistants 

x 4 summer temps
(B)

Project Officer- IO

(G)

Cemeteries Officer x 2

( E)
Chargehand Castle

( E)

Castle EMO x 5

(D)

Chargehand Reactive 
Team( E)

Reactive Team EMO x2

(D)

Chargehand Green and 
Cemeteries

Burials EMO’s 

x 2  (D)

Team Structure- Environment/ Operations

P
age 17



Service Operations
Areas of responsibility Maintenance responsibility 

Estates Mowing Flower beds and floral planters

Cemeteries and burials Vegetation management Litter picking 

Nature Reserves / Country 
parks 

Shrub bed management Litter bins 

Formal parks Hedge cutting Road / footpath sweeping 

Trees Weed management 

Play areas Tree & woodland maintenance and 
management

Fly tip removal 

Pitches Pitch maintenance and marking Graffiti removal

Town Centre- cleanliness Summer and winter bedding Bowling greens 

Supporting infrastructure / 
capital projects 

Cemeteries maintenance

P
age 18



Supporting 
our 

housing 
tenants

Alleyways & 
hotspots

High rise Mini 
Matic

Green Spaces

Assisted 
Gardening 

Scheme

Tree 
management

Drying areas

Garage areas

Community 
Projects

P
age 19



Resources
• The Operational Services is one of the biggest frontline service areas of the authority and the overall 

budget for 23/24 was £4.23m with a spend of £2.72m after income. The Housing Revenue Account 

contribute £1,064,529 to the services, and the breakdown of this is below.

• Eight staff are directly funded via the Housing Revenue Account in the role of Housing Maintenance 

Operatives.

  
Housing Revenue Account contribution

HMO resource (inc on-costs) £354,678

Maintenance of Grounds £309,500

Maintenance of Roads and gully emptying £98,090

Lighting - energy & maintenance £61,370

Assisted Gardening Scheme £81,300

Street Cleansing £146,710

Tree works £12,880

Total £1,064,529

P
age 20



Statutory Services
• Biodiversity duty - Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (Operational Services & 

alongside Regeneration & Growth)

• Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 

• Designated Waste Collection Authority (Operational Services) 

• Environmental Protection Act (Operational Services, alongside Regeneration & Growth) 

• Maintenance of vehicle operator’s licence (Operational Services) 

• Principal litter authority (Operational Services) 

• Social Housing Regulation- Neighbourhoods and Community Standards 

• Closed churchyards re Burial Act 1853  (Operational Services)

• Common Duty of Care under the Occupiers Liability Act 1957 (All services)

P
age 21



Non- Statutory Services

• Children’s play provision (Operational Services) 

• Flooding and drainage (Operational Services)

• Bus shelters maintenance (Operational Services) 

• Street furniture maintenance (Operational Services)

• Supporting Section 106 and Capital Projects agreement monitoring and managing (Operational 

Services & Active Wellbeing alongside Regeneration & Growth)

• Parks, open space, cemetery and tree management and development (Operational Services).

P
age 22



Service Risks

• The staff workforce provided supports the delivery of both the statutory and non-statutory requirements of the services. If 
staffing resources were not maintained to at least the current levels then this could result in these not being fulfilled by the 
authority.

• The sheer size of the department can result in staff turnover, and this could result in pressures on the services being able to 
maintain service standards. The team are working hard to recruit a skilled and experienced workforce to ensure that service 
provision is delivered to the standards set out, and continuity of service delivery.

• Supporting the workforce to be multi-skilled enables wider resilience across the service to minimise the risks above.

• Opportunity to embrace new technology for service optimisation, we could risk falling behind industry opportunities and 
standards- e.g. bin sensors.

P
age 23



Contacting Us / Feedback
• Contacting us to report an issue:

Street scene - Clean team | Tamworth Borough Council

Street scene - Green team | Tamworth Borough Council

P
age 24

https://mytamworth.tamworth.gov.uk/do-it-online/report-it/street-scene-clean-team/
https://mytamworth.tamworth.gov.uk/do-it-online/report-it/street-scene-green-team/


Thank you & any questions?P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 Tamworth Borough Council  

 Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Work Plan 

2024 - 2025 

 

To provide effective scrutiny of the achievement of the Council’s strategic priorities and external providers in securing the primary outcome of creating a safe and sustaining 
thriving local economy and making Tamworth a more aspirational and competitive place to do business, with a focus on:- 

 • Infrastructure 

 • Education  

• Employment/Inward Investment  

• Town Centre  

• Open Space and Play  

• Public Space Protection Orders Statutory Crime and Disorder obligation; the Committee shall act as the Crime and Disorder Committee for the purposes of section 19 of the 
Police and Justice Act 2006 and may co-opt additional members subject to the Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009. To undertake such other 
scrutiny activities, relevant to the committee’s scope, as may be required in relation to the performance of the Council, governance, financial management and discharge of 
statutory functions. 
Membership:                                                                                                                                                                                                     

Chair: Councillor Marion Couchman                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Members: Councillors Craig Adams, Marie Bailey, Lee Clarke, Margaret Clarke, Jeremy Oates, Ben Price, Natalie Statham and Lee Wood (Vice-Chair) 

 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 12



 

 

Date Issue Format/Reason Lead Officer Lead Member 

2nd October 2024 Future High Street Fund Quarterly Update Anna Miller Leader of the Council 

Maintenance of Estates and 
Open Spaces 

Member Request: matter of importance to residents 
(original planned for 22nd August) 

Hannah Peate Environment, Sustainability, 
Recycling & Waste 

Review of the Heritage 
Engagement Officer Post  

Officer Request Lara Rowe Infrastructure, Heritage and 
Local Economy 

12th November 
2024 

Community Safety Update Twice Yearly update Jo Sands Co-operative Council, 
Community Partnerships and 
ASB 

 Nature Recovery Declaration Quarterly Update - Briefing note   Hannah Peate Environment, Sustainability, 
Recycling & Waste 

 Climate Change Update  Anna Miller Environment, Sustainability, 
Recycling & Waste 

29th January 2025 Future High Street Fund Quarterly Update Anna Miller Leader of the Council 

Revised Local Development 
Scheme 

Officer request Richard Powell Housing, Homelessness and 
Planning 

5th March 2025 
  

Decant Policy Member request: Forward Plan Tina Mustafa Housing/Homelessness & 
Planning 

Nature Recovery Declaration Annual update   Hannah Peate Environment, Sustainability, 
Recycling & Waste 

To be Confirmed Improving Water Quality Within 
Rivers in Tamworth 

Referral from Full Council. Agreed to add to the Workplan 21/03/24 
scoping document completed 11.06.24 

Hannah Peate Environment, Sustainability, 
Recycling & Waste 

Items Considered/Recommendations to Cabinet/Further Action 

Date of 
meeting 

Item Action Cabinet Meeting 
Date 

Response from Cabinet /Any further action 

11/07/24 Electric Vehicle 
Charging Strategy 

Endorsed the recommendation within 
the report and made a further two 
Recommendations to Cabinet  

18/07/24 Recommendation one agreed 
Recommendation two agreed with an amendment 

07/08/24 Annual Garden 
Waste subscription 
Charge 

Recommendation one – asked Cabinet 
to Defer 
Recommendation two- agreed 

08/08/24 Agreed to defer subject to report returning to 
Scrutiny with further information on the 22/08/24 

02/09/24 Annual Garden 
Waste subscription 

The Committee supported the following 
recommendation for Cabinet to agree 
to –  
Approve the increase of the annual 

29/08/24 Agreed by Cabinet -  Approved the increase of 
the annual subscription fee to £41 effective 1st 
January 2025, with the sign-up window open in 
October. 

P
age 28



 

subscription fee to £41 effective 1st 
January 2025, with the sign up window 
open in October. 

02/09/24 Review of Bulky 
Waste Service 

Create a working group to consider the 
matter further of bulky waste within the 
community 

N/A  

Items Considered/No further action 

Date of 
meeting 

Item Action 

11/07/24 FHSF Update Recommendations endorsed 

07/08/24 Joint Waste Service Update and Fleet Procurement Recommendations endorsed 

02/09/24 Joint Waste Service Operations Update Recommendations endorsed 

Nature Recovery Declaration Recommendations endorsed 

Working Groups 
 

Working Group  Members Current Work 

Facilities for HGV Drivers in Tamworth Cllr B Price 
Cllr L Wood 
Cllr N Statham 
County Cllr J Oates 

Meeting 21st August 2024 

Bulky Waste within  the Community Cllr M Couchman 
Cllr C Adams 
Cllr M Clarke 
Cllr N Statham 

Established 22.08.24 

Upcoming Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

Meeting dates : 

2nd October  

 

12th November 2024 

29th January 2024 

5th March 2025 

P
age 29



 

 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 30


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	9 Maintenance of Estates and Open Spaces
	Slide 1: Maintenance of estates and open spaces
	Slide 2: Overview
	Slide 3
	Slide 4: Service Operations
	Slide 5
	Slide 6: Resources
	Slide 7: Statutory Services
	Slide 8: Non- Statutory Services
	Slide 9: Service Risks
	Slide 10
	Slide 11

	12 Infrastructure Safety & Growth Scrutiny Committee Work Plan

